
TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD 
PLANNING BOARD  

 
Minutes 

July 28, 2004 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
Chairman, Michael Tfank, called the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m. with the reading of the 
legal notice. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, Michael 

Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner.  Alternates:    Matthew DeFede, Clinton 
Smith.  Chairman:    Michael Tfank.  Board Attorneys:   Glenn Kienz, Esq. and 
Bryant Gonzalez, Esq.  Planning Director:    William Drew, P.P.  Consulting 
Engineer:    Robert Kirkpatrick, P.E. 

 
Absent:   
 
As the result of a vacancy on the Board the Chairman appointed Matthew DeFede as a voting 
member for this evening. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez provided a brief overview of the Highlands Water Protection and Planning Act 
and advised that applicants should be aware that pursuant to that legislation they might be 
required to obtain Preservation Area Approval from the NJDEP, unless the proposed 
development is exempt from the Act’s requirements.  Letters from Paul C. Nielson, Esq. for 
the firm of Weiner Lesniak LLP dated July 28, 2004 specific to each of the following 
applications were distributed to the individual applicants or their representatives:  Eugene 
and Elaine Prais, Carl Bierwas, Thomas A. Celano and Michael & Joseph Costello, Bradley 
Malavolta.  
 
PUBLIC PORTION 
 
Elaine Duffy, 21 Warwick Turnpike, Hewitt, NJ read a statement regarding cluster housing 
and the impact of a zone change and development on the area bordering the Warwick 
Turnpike and Union Valley Road. 
 
ZONE CHANGE APPLICATIONS 
 
ZANADO ENTERPRISES 
Zone Change #0450-0176 
Block 6803; Lots 4 and 11 
Warwick Turnpike and Union Valley Roads; CC Zone 
Request to change existing CC Zone to R-2 
Board recommendation to Township Council 
 
Allen Hantman, Esq., Morris & Hantman, 168 East Main Street, Denville, NJ. represented the 
applicant.  This is a continuation of a hearing on a request to change the existing CC Zone to 
R-2.  Mr. Hantman advised that he had received the Planning Report dated July 8, 2004.  He 
opined that due to environmental constraints the property is not suitable for commercial 
development.  Under R-2 zoning four (4) variance free lots could be created; under R-4 the 
same four lots could be created with one variance required.  He noted that the applicant 
would not object if the zone was changed to R-4.   
 
William Drew, Planning Director, provided a breakdown of the percentage of acreage in the 
Township that is zoned commercial.  He advised that the CC zone comprises 0.8% of the 
Township or 428.7 acres.    He noted that there is no R-2 zoning adjacent to the property in 
question.    
 
During discussion the Board expressed concern regarding the impact of traffic on the area if 
developed commercially.  It was suggested that the Board should take no action at this time.  
The Board noted that it was not in favor of two acre zoning.  It was suggested that the 
Planning Department explore the possibility of a split zone, maintaining a portion along 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 13 
 
Union Valley in a commercial zone and the balance in an R-4 residential zone.  The Board 
then put to a vote whether to send this application for zone change to the Township Council. 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by James O’Bryant, against forwarding this 
zone change request to the Township Council. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, 

Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Michael Tfank. 
   No - Edward Orthouse, Matthew DeFede, 
 
APPLICATIONS 
 
X-TRA SPACE CENTER 
Preliminary & Final Site Plan #0220-0127 
Bulk Variance #0230-0589 
Block 6902; Lot 17 
54 White Road; CC Zone 
Request for time extension. 
 
Steven Eisenstein, Esq., Lum, Danzis, Drasco & Positan, LLC, 103 Eisenhower Parkway, 
Roseland, NJ represented the applicant. 
 
Mr. Eisenstein indicated that the applicant was seeking an extension of its final site plan 
approval for two (2) years pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-52.  In this regard, Mr. Eisenstein 
indicated that the applicant wished to ensure the economic viability of the project prior to 
completion of the remainder of the improvements to be made to the subject property.  He 
indicated that the applicant had experienced a fluctuation in occupancy levels and as such did 
not complete the improvements to be made to the subject property.  As occupancy levels have 
leveled off to a degree, the applicant is requesting an extension of its approvals so that it may 
determine whether occupancy levels will remain constant such that a market will exist to 
justify an expansion of the facilities pursuant to the site plan.   
 
The Board Attorney indicated that pursuant to the Municipal Land Use Law at N.J.S.A. 
40:55D-52, the Planning Board could only grant an extension of final approval for a 
maximum of one (1) year per request and that the applicant's request for a two (2) year 
extension was beyond the scope of what the Planning Board could grant pursuant to 
Municipal Land Use Law. 
 
The Board then opened the meeting to the public.  With no members of the public present 
expressing an interest in this application, the Board promptly closed the public comment 
portion of the hearing to the public. 
 
MOTION made by Kurt Wagner, seconded by James O’Bryant, to approve a one-year time 
extension. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, 

Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, 
Michael Tfank. 

   No - None 
 
MICHAEL & JOSEPH COSTELLO, BRADLEY MALAVOLTA  COMPLETE: 06-13-04 
Minor Subdivision #0310-1956     DEADLINE: 07-28-04 
Block 6403; Lot 1.02 
Lincoln & Tintle Avenues; R-1 Zone 
Create 3 building lots. 
 
The applicants were represented by John V. McCambley, Esq., 637 Wyckoff Avenue, Wyckoff, 
NJ and Gerald Gardner, P.E., 1141 Greenwood Lake Turnpike, Ringwood, NJ. 
 
Mr. Gardner indicated that he prepared the minor subdivision drawings dated April 25, 2003 
with revision date of February 11, 2004 and consisting of five (5) sheets.  He testified that the 
subject property measured approximately 27 acres and contained a substantial number of 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 13 
 
wetlands, which were to be flagged.  He further noted that a Letter of Interpretation had been 
applied for with the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") but was 
still outstanding.  The applicants he indicated were proposing to create three (3) lots 
measuring approximately 9 acres or less each and that the size of these lots met the 
Ordinance requirement of being at least 1 acre.  With respect to the existence of stream 
corridors on the subject property, Mr. Gardner indicated that Belcher's Creek was located on 
a small portion of the subject property and were within the wetlands on the subject property.  
He indicated that the applicants would provide the appropriate buffer area on the subject 
property to Belcher's Creek and that the plans depicted the buffer to be 80 feet.  With regard 
to the disturbance to be generated on the subject property, Mr. Gardner indicated that area 
disturbance would be below the Township's limits.   
 
With respect to driveways on the subject property, Mr. Gardner indicated that they would be 
paved up to 50 feet and would be improved with macadam and impervious coverage.  With 
respect to the proposed septic systems for the subject property, he indicated that letters of the 
acceptability of the systems was provided by the Health Department. 
 
With respect to obtaining DEP approvals, Mr. Gardner indicated that all applications 
submitted to the DEP were under review and had been submitted two (2) months prior to the 
hearing.  A delay in the review of these applications was caused as a result of the incorrect fee 
being sent to the DEP and the DEP's delay in notifying the applicants of the incorrect fee 
amount. 
 
In reviewing this application, the Board considered the report of the Board Planner, William 
H. Drew, dated July 23, 2004.  In his report, the Board Planner indicated that the applicants 
were seeking a minor subdivision of the subject property with no bulk variances associated 
with the application. 
 
The Board Planner indicated that the existing lot was vacant and approximately 27 acres in 
size.  He noted that the applicants were proposing to create three (3) new building lots of 8.84 
acres, 9.33 acres and 9.43 acres in size when the minimum required is 1 acre.  He further 
indicated in his report that two (2) of the proposed lots would have access via Lincoln Avenue 
and the other proposed lot would be accessed from Tintle Avenue.   
 
The Board Planner indicated that the subject property contained large wetland areas and the 
applicants were in the process of obtaining permits from the DEP.  For purposes of the 
application, the applicants had assumed a 150-foot buffer and had prepared their plans 
accordingly.  The Board Planner further indicated that the applicants were requesting from 
the DEP a general permit number 10A, which if approved would allow for a driveway crossing 
over a wetlands area.  The length of the crossing area is 76 feet and the area of the crossing is 
2,911 square feet in total.   
 
With respect to the location of Belcher's Creek on the subject property, the Board Planner 
indicated that the proposed house that comes nearest to Belcher's Creek is approximately 400 
feet away (proposed Lot 4).   
 
The Board Planner further indicated that the Environmental Impact Statement provided by 
the applicant indicated that there were numerous stream corridors throughout the site and 
that there were no slopes in excess of 20 percent (20%).  With respect to the wetlands, the 
Board Planner indicated that the applicants would have to provide the correct buffer once a 
Letter of Interpretation was obtained from the DEP.   
 
The Board Planner further indicated that the applicants should demonstrate that adequate 
water supply could be provided prior to the signing of the Deeds by the Township so as not to 
consummate the subdivision if it could not provide a potable water supply for three (3) 
houses. 
 
In response to this portion of the Board Planner's report, the applicants agreed to provide 
information with respect to potable water supply as requested in the Board Planner's report. 
 
The Board also considered the report of its Board Engineer, Robert Kirkpatrick, P.E., dated 
July 10, 2004.  In this regard, the applicants indicated that they would agree to the Board 
Engineer's request for the submission of recalculations for water. 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 4 of 13 
 
The Board then opened the meeting to the public.  With no members of the public present 
expressing an interest in this application, the Board promptly closed the public comment 
portion of the hearing to the public. 
 
MOTION made by James O’Bryant, seconded by Michael Siesta, to approve the application. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, 

Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, 
Michael Tfank. 

   No - None. 
 
THOMAS A. CELANO       COMPLETE: 06-16-04 
Minor Subdivision #0410-1960     DEADLINE: 10-14-04 
Variance #0430-0669 
Block 5309; Lot 1 
Cahill Cross Road; R-2 Zone 
Create two building lots. 
 
Michael Tfank recused himself.  The Vice Chairwoman, Leslie Tallaksen, then presided over 
the meeting and appointed alternate member, Clinton Smith to take the place of Chairman 
Tfank on the Board.   
 
The application before the Board is a request for minor subdivision approval with ancillary 
"c" variance relief for the subject property.   
 
The applicant, Thomas A. Celano, 61 Timber Lane, Newfoundland, NJ, appeared on his own 
behalf and was accompanied by Douglas McKittrick, P.E., P.P. of McKittrick Engineering 
Associates, Inc., 2024 Macopin Road, West Milford, NJ, who was accepted by the Board as a 
licensed professional engineer and a licensed professional planner in the State of New Jersey 
testifying on behalf of the applicant with regard to the minor subdivision, which he prepared 
and submitted to the Board dated November 15, 1999 with revision dates of October 15, 2001, 
October 15, 2003 and March 3, 2004 and consisting of four (4) sheets.   
  
The applicant then provided a short history of the property and indicated that in 1989 an 
application was filed by a previous owner of the subject property in order to create the lot that 
is the subject property.  The lot on the subject property was then created by way of approval 
in 1992.  In 1993, the applicant indicated that there was an extension of the runway on a 
nearby airport that is adjacent to the subject property.  The applicant indicated that he 
purchased the property in 1997 and in 1999 the State of New Jersey took ownership of the 
airport property.  The applicant then indicated that he learned that the subject property was 
located in the Airport Hazard Zone in the year 2000.   
 
The applicant indicated his intent in purchasing the property in 1997 was to develop the 
property but that he only learned of the limitations imposed on the property by the Airport 
Hazard Zone (hereinafter "AHZ ") in the year 2000. 
 
The applicant then referred to sheet 4 of the plans submitted by McKittrick Engineering 
Associates to discuss how the AHZ affected the subject property.  The applicant indicated that 
his proposed development of the subject property was in conformance with the development 
of the surrounding properties in that the surrounding properties were developed under R-2 
zoning and what he was proposing was similar to an R-2 development.  He further indicated 
that the development he was proposing fit in well with the surrounding properties in that it fit 
in well with the logical progression of reduction of density in the properties immediately 
surrounding. 
 
The applicant also indicated that the difference between the subject property as proposed in 
the 1992 application and the property at present was that there was now sewer and water 
available to the subject property whereas this was not the case in 1992. 
Mr. Celano indicated that with respect to the variances that were needed for the application, 
the Board should grant relief to him since in his opinion the State of New Jersey did not 
obtain proper approvals to extend the airport runway, which extended the AHZ to affect the 
development of his property.  He further indicated that the proposed subdivision would 
alleviate the problems from the extended runway and would provide a good transition area 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 5 of 13 
 
from higher to lower density neighborhoods in the Township of West Milford.  The applicant 
then indicated that for these reasons he did not believe his proposal would harm the intent of 
the Zoning Ordinance or Zone Plan and would be consistent with existing density 
surrounding the subject property. 
 
The applicant also indicated that the development of its property would also be subject to the 
approval of the Civil State Division of Aeronautics, which oversees the development of 
adjacent properties in connection with its oversight of airports. 
 
With respect to water supply for the subject property, the applicant produced a copy of a 
letter dated December 13, 1999 from Vito Spadavecchia, Operations Manager, United Water 
Mid-Atlantic, which indicated that water and sewer service could be provided to Block 5301, 
Lot 21.07, which the applicant indicated was proof that water could be supplied to the subject 
property and the proposed homes that would eventually be developed.   
 
As certain Board members were concerned that the letter provided by the applicant did not 
concern the subject property, the Board requested and the applicant agreed that as a 
condition of approval, he would obtain an updated letter from United Water or the 
appropriate entity with regard to the adequacy of sewer and water for the subject property. 
 
In considering this application, the Board reviewed the report of its Board Planner, William 
H. Drew, P.P., dated July 23, 2004.  In his report the Board Planner indicated that the subject 
property falls in an R-2 Residential District and has public water and sewer available to it.  He 
indicated in his report that the subject property measured 2.02 acres in size and that the 
applicant was proposing to subdivide the property into two (2) building lots.   
 
The Board Planner further indicated in his report that the subject property while in the R-2 
Zone was subject to R-4 area and yard requirements due to the property's location within the 
Airport Hazard Overlay Zone.  Consequently he indicated that the proposal required bulk 
variance approval for the creation of undersized lots and in this regard required variance 
approval for lot area, lot frontage, lot width, lot depth, side yard setback, front yard setback, 
rear yard setback and disturbance of slopes in excess of 35 percent (35%). 
 
The Board Planner further indicated in his report that the proposed lot sizes are 1.1 acres for 
proposed Lot 1.01 and 0.91 acres for proposed Lot 1.02.  The Board Planner indicated that if 
not for the subject property's location in the Airport Hazard Overlay Zone the two (2) 
proposed lots would be in conformance with the R-2 area and yard requirements.  As R-4 
standards were applicable to the property, however, the Board Planner noted that the 
proposed lots were undersized as the R-4 Zone requires 4 acres.   
 
He further indicated in his report that variances for lot frontage were needed since proposed 
Lot 1.01 was providing 181.94 feet and proposed Lot 1.02 was providing 278.84 feet of lot 
frontage whereas 300 feet were required based on R-4 zone standards.  In regard to lot width, 
variances were needed for proposed Lot 1.01 which provided only 181 feet and proposed Lot 
1.02 which provided only 233 feet whereas the R-4 Zone standards required 300 feet of lot 
width.  With regard to lot depth, the Board Planner's report indicated that the applicant 
required a variance for proposed Lot 1.02, which provided only 160 feet of lot depth whereas 
275 feet were required based on R-4 zone standards.  With regard to side yard, the Board 
Planner indicated that variances were needed as proposed Lot 1.01 provided only 40 feet and 
proposed Lot 1.02 provided only 30 feet whereas 60 feet were required by the R-4 Zone 
standards.  With respect to front yard setback, variance relief was required for both proposed 
lots as Lot 1.01 provided only 55 feet and proposed Lot 1.02 provided only 50 feet whereas 125 
feet were required by the R-4 Zone standards.  With regard to rear yard setback, the Board 
Planner indicated in his report that a variance was needed to proposed Lot 1.02 as 30 feet 
were provided but 125 feet were required by the R-4 Zone standards.  Lastly, the Board 
Planner's report indicated that a variance was needed for disturbance of slopes in excess of 35 
percent (35%) and recommended that the Applicant provide testimony as to why a variance 
should be granted. 
 
Mr. McKittrick then testified with respect to steep slopes on the subject property.  In this 
regard he indicated that steep slopes were not an issue and that with respect to Lot 1.01, the 
proposed building envelope would impinge on at most a 20 by 40 foot area of steep slope on 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 6 of 13 
 
the subject property.  In total he indicated that approximately 5 percent (5%) of steep slopes 
were disturbed on the subject property. 
 
With regard to the initial recommendations listed on page 3 of the Board Engineer's report, 
the applicant indicated that he would apply for the requisite approvals from the State for 
development within an Airport Safety Zone.  He further indicated that his intention was to 
hookup to United Water's public water and sewer systems, which service the present Bald 
Eagle Manor development adjacent to the subject property.  The applicant further indicated 
that he would submit a digital file of the plan to the Planning Department as a condition of 
approval.   
 
With respect to the variances requested by the applicant, Mr. McKittrick indicated that the 
Board could grant relief to the applicant for minimum lot area, minimum lot frontage, 
minimum lot width, minimum lot depth, side yard setback, front yard setback, rear yard 
setback and disturbance of slopes in excess of 35 percent (35%) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-
70c in that the shape of the property was irregular and the development of the property was 
limited by the existence of certain steep slopes and the topography generally and that these 
conditions would limit the owner or any future developer in the development of the subject 
property.  He further indicated that development of the property would be consistent with 
existing development in the area in terms of density, building locations and would have 
adequate water and sewer.  With respect to steep slope disturbance, Mr. McKittrick indicated 
that only a small portion of the subject property was being excavated and this was essentially 
so that footings could be placed for the development of one (1) of the homes on the subject 
property. 
 
The Board Engineer, Robert C. Kirkpatrick, P.E., indicated that he was concerned with 
whether pressure tanks and/or a booster pump would be needed for the proposed residences 
on the subject property as the plans indicated that certain portions of the subject property 
were at elevations above 870 feet.  In this regard he noted that the applicant should put a note 
on its plans with regard to whether a pressure tank and/or booster pump would be needed for 
either of the two (2) dwellings to be located on the subject property.   
 
The Board Engineer also noted that he was concerned as to there being 4 feet of support slab 
for the footings exposed to the elements and as such the applicant needed to revise its grading 
plan to address this issue. 
 
Mr. McKittrick indicated that the applicant was willing to revise the plans to address both the 
grading on Lot 1.01 as well as the issue regarding whether a pressure tank and booster pump 
were needed.  He further indicated that there was a swale above Lot 1.01, which would divert 
water around the proposed dwelling to a natural gulley located on Cahill Cross Road by the 
Bald Eagle Manor development. 
 
The Board then opened the meeting to the public for comment on the application.  In this 
regard the Board first heard from Patricia Horan of 531 Moorestown Road.  Ms. Horan 
indicated that she was also speaking on behalf of Oltmann Donee and James Schmidt of 521 
Moorestown Road, who were not able to attend the meeting.  Ms. Horan indicated that she as 
well as Mr. Donee and Ms. Schmidt were opposed to the application and that the Board 
should reject the application since only one (1) home should be located on the subject 
property.  She indicated that the subject property was under the 4-acre zoning requirement 
and that new homes in the area were required to be located on 4-acre lots.  She also noted her 
concern as to wildlife in the area and the impact of the development on existing wildlife.  She 
further indicated that she was not aware of the restrictions imposed by the Airport Hazard 
Overlay Zone.  Ms. Horan was further concerned as to whether there would be any blasting on 
the subject property.   
 
In this regard, Mr. McKittrick indicated that he did not envision there would any significant 
blasting on the subject property, however, in response to Ms. Horan's concerns, the applicant 
would submit a pre-blasting survey to the Board Engineer if any blasting was necessary.  The 
applicant agreed to this as a condition of approval. 
 
With no other members of the public present expressing an interest in this application, the 
Board closed the public comment portion of the hearing. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 7 of 13 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by James O’Bryant, to approve the application. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, 

Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, 
Clinton Smith. 

   No - None 
 
Mr. Tfank rejoined the Board. 
 
CARL BIERWAS        COMPLETE: 06-22-04 
Minor Subdivision #0410-1964     DEADLINE: 10-20-04 
Bulk Variance #0430-0665 
Block 8201; Lot 2 
1945 Macopin Road, R-1 Zone 
Create one building lot. 
 
Mr. Orthouse recused himself and the Chairman appointed Mr. Smith to take Mr. Orthouse’s 
place on the Board. 
 
The application before the Board is a request for minor subdivision approval with ancillary 
"c" variance relief for the subject property. 
 
John M. Barbarula, Esq., Barbarula & Associates, 23 Professional Building, 1242 Route 23 
North, Butler, NJ appeared for the applicant.  Testifying on behalf of the applicant was 
Kenneth Ochab, P.P., Kenneth Ochab Associates, Inc., 12-16 Fair Lawn Avenue, Fair Lawn, 
NJ (with respect to planning aspects of the application) and Claud Ballester, P.E., Ballester & 
Associates, Inc., 1811 Union Valley Road, West Milford, NJ (with respect to site plan 
engineering).  The applicant, Mr. Ochab and Mr. Ballester were sworn in before providing 
testimony.  The Board accepted Messrs. Ochab and Ballester as experts in planning and 
engineering, respectively. 
 
The applicant then indicated to the Board that the purpose of the application was to subdivide 
the subject property to create one new building lot.  The applicant indicated that his 
application was being submitted pursuant to an agreement with his daughter who was to buy 
the newly created lot.  The applicant further indicated that the property is level in terms of 
topography and the proposed new lot would consist of vacant lawn area, which he has 
maintained for more than 26 years.   
 
Mr. Ballester then testified that the proposal was to divide the approximate 1.1 acres on the 
subject property into two (2) lots measuring approximately 0.702 acres and 0.466 acres.  He 
indicated that the subject property faces Macopin Road and is improved with a one-family 
dwelling.  He further indicated that the proposed new lot would have street access via Will 
Lane. 
 
In reviewing this application the Board considered the report of its Board Engineer, Robert C. 
Kirkpatrick, P.E. dated June 5, 2004, the terms of which are incorporated herein by 
reference.  In this regard, Mr. Ballester indicated that the applicant was willing to comply and 
would comply with all provisions of the Board Engineer's report.  He further indicated that 
lighting would be provided at the end of the proposed driveway for proposed Lot 2.02 and 
that such lighting would be similar to that of existing neighbors (stanchion lights). 
Mr. Ballester indicated that the topography on the subject property was level and that the 
design of the property was such that it would minimize any slope disturbance as shown on 
page 2 of 2 of the minor subdivision map he prepared and submitted to the Board dated 
March 24, 2004 with a last revision date of May 11, 2004. 
 
With regard to the variances needed for the subject property, Mr. Ballester indicated that 
variances were needed for lot area, lot frontage, lot depth, front yard setback and rear yard 
setback.  Regarding lot area, he indicated that variances were needed for both proposed Lot 
2.01 and proposed Lot 2.02 in that Lot 2.01 would measure 0.702 acres, which was below the 
1-acre minimum required by the West Milford Ordinance.  Proposed Lot 2.02 was also below 
the 1-acre minimum measuring 0.466 acres.  
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 8 of 13 
 
With respect to lot frontage, Mr. Ballester indicated that a variance would be required with 
respect to proposed Lot 2.01 as the proposed lot frontage would be 50 feet whereas the 
Ordinance required 150 feet.  In this regard he further indicated that proposed Lot 2.02 
would not require a variance for lot frontage since this was a preexisting, nonconforming 
condition. 
 
With respect to minimum lot width, Mr. Ballester indicated that proposed Lot 2.02 measured 
124 feet while proposed Lot 2.01 measured 391 feet.  In this regard he indicated that proposed 
Lot 2.02 fell below the Township's requirement of 150 feet but that as this was a preexisting 
nonconformity a variance was not required.  
  
With respect to minimum lot depth, Mr. Ballester indicated that the Township Ordinance 
required 200 feet while proposed Lot 2.02 provided only 185 feet and proposed Lot 2.01 
provided only 79.6 feet.  As the variances were being created by the proposal, he indicated 
variance relief was necessary. 
 
With respect to minimum rear yard setback, Mr. Ballester indicated that proposed Lot 2.01 
required variance relief since the Township Ordinance required 50 feet whereas proposed Lot 
2.01 only provided 15.5 feet.  Proposed Lot 2.02 did not require variance relief as it measured 
81.7 feet and was beyond the minimum required rear yard setback. 
 
With regard to minimum front yard setback, Mr. Ballester indicated that proposed Lot 2.01 
required variance relief in that it provided only 20.5 feet of front yard setback whereas the 
Township Ordinance required 50 feet.  Proposed Lot 2.02 did not require variance relief in 
this regard as it provided 56.7 feet of front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Ballester then indicated that a proposed turn around had not been constructed and 
consequently the applicant's application before the Passaic County Planning Board was 
denied.  He indicated, however, that the proposed turn around would be constructed as 
shown on the plans submitted if approved. 
 
In considering this application, the Board also reviewed the report of its Planner, William H. 
Drew dated July 23, 2004, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.  With 
regard to the Board Planner's comments at page 2 of his report, Mr. Ballester indicated that 
the correct lot size of proposed Lot 2.01 was 0.702 acres.   
 
With regard to the initial recommendations of the Board Planner's report, Mr. Ballester 
indicated that the applicant could comply with all four (4) enumerated recommendations 
inclusive of which was proof that an adequate water supply would be obtained prior to the 
consummation of the subdivision. 
 
Mr. Ballester reiterated the applicant's request for a waiver from the site plan requirement of 
providing an Environmental Impact Statement with respect to steep slopes on the subject 
property.  In this regard, Mr. Ballester indicated that any slopes that exist on the subject 
property were created by fill encroachment by neighbors of the subject property.  This he 
indicated was shown on Sheet 2 of 2 of the plans prepared by his office that were submitted to 
the Board. 
 
The applicant then testified as to a photo, which was marked into evidence as Exhibit A-1.  
The applicant indicated that he had taken the photo and that the photo was of a shed that had 
been removed from the subject property.  In this regard, he indicated that the shed would not 
be replaced.   
 
Board member Douglas Ott then inquired as to the location of the proposed septic system on 
the subject property. 
 
Mr. Ballester indicated that the septic system would be located on a slope on the subject 
property but that it would be part of a trench system that would work in terms of design for 
the subject property.  He indicated, however, that he did not have the details available in 
terms of the design for the proposed septic system. 
 
Mr. Ochab then appeared before the Board and testified with respect to the planning aspects 
of the application.  He testified as to six (6) photos, which were marked as Exhibit A-2, that he 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 9 of 13 
 
indicated were pictures of the subject property, which he had taken in mid-July of 2004.  He 
also testified with respect to a survey, a modified form of which was shown on the first sheet 
of the plans submitted to the Board.  The survey was marked as Exhibit A-3. 
 
Mr. Ochab indicated that both proposed lots would have access to at least one (1) street.  In 
this regard, he indicated that proposed Lot 2.02 would have frontage on Macopin Road and 
proposed Lot 2.01 would have frontage on Will Lane.  With respect to the variances required 
for the application, he reiterated the variances as indicated by Mr. Ballester and noted that 
variance relief could be provided by the Board pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-70c(1) and (2).  
Mr. Ochab indicated that the proposal submitted by the applicant was consistent with the 
development pattern presently existing on Will Lane in that most of the lots measured 0.46 to 
0.48 acres.  He indicated that the proposed density was also consistent with the existing 
surrounding neighborhood, which showed one-family dwellings.  He further indicated that 
the proposed new lot would fit in well with the existing development pattern.  He further 
indicated that there would be no negative impact by the proposed development.  In this 
regard he indicated that there was good separation between the buildings in the 
neighborhood and the buildings on the subject property.  He also noted that vegetation along 
the property lines would help to screen proposed Lot 2.01 from adjacent properties.  Mr. 
Ochab indicated that the proposed subdivision would also complete the subdivision of the 
area in which the subject property was located particularly with respect to the division of 
property along Will Lane.  Consequently, Mr. Ochab opined that there would be no 
substantial impairment of the zone plan and/or zoning ordinance.  With respect to lot width, 
lot depth, minimum rear yard and minimum front yard setbacks, he indicated that relief 
could be granted to the applicant pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-70c(1) due to the shape and 
configuration of the lots.  In this regard he indicated that the shape of the existing Lot 2 
would result in a peculiar and exceptional practical difficulty to the owner or any future 
developer of the subject property.  In view of the foregoing facts, Mr. Ochab indicated that 
variance relief was appropriate pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-70c(1) and (2). 
 
The applicant then indicated that he had attempted to acquire adjacent property.  In this 
regard the applicant produced a buy/sell letter dated July 21, 2004, which was marked into 
evidence as Exhibit A-4.  Exhibit A-4 was a letter executed by the owners of Block 8201, Lot 1 
as shown on the Tax Map of the Township of West Milford.  Exhibit A-4 was executed by 
Marie Cytowicz and Walter Cytowicz as owners of Block 8201, Lot 1 and indicated their intent 
not to sell their property to the applicant and their intent not to purchase the subject property 
from the applicant. 
 
The meeting was then opened to the public for comment on the application.  In this regard 
the Board heard from Walter Cytowicz of 1953 Macopin Road, Block 8201, Lot 1 who 
indicated that he was the neighbor of the applicant and that he was in favor of the application 
since Mr. Bierwas was a good neighbor.   
 
With no other members of the public coming forward to provide comments, the Board closed 
the public comment portion of the application. 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by Leslie Tallaksen, to approve the application. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, 

Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, Clinton Smith, Michael Tfank. 
   No - James O’Bryant 
 
Mr. Orthouse rejoined the Board and Mr. Smith stepped down. 
 
EUGENE PRAIS        COMPLETE: 07-01-04 
Preliminary Subdivision #0410-1961    DEADLINE: 10-29-04 
Variance #0430-0654 
De Minimis Exception 
Block 8401; Lots 22 and 23 
114 Dockerty Hollow Road; R-2 Zone 
Create one building lot. 
 
The applicant, Eugene Prais, 114 Dockerty Hollow Road, West Milford, advised the Board that 
he was prepared to submit a check for the escrow monies due.  He further advised that the 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 10 of 13 
 
taxes on the property were paid in full.  Mr. Prais outlined the history of the property and 
explained that he was seeking to adjust lot lines to create a building lot.   
 
Douglas McKittrick, PE, PP, McKittrick Engineering Associates, Inc., 2024 Macopin Road, 
West Milford, NJ addressed the items in the Planning Staff’s report dated July 23, 2004. 
 
The Board discussed the proposed means of access to the property via a private road, when 
the property fronted along a public right-of-way, albeit unimproved and partially lying within 
a wetland.  The applicant advised he would attempt to investigate with the State DEP, the 
ability to make improvements to the public right-of-way within the wetlands. 
 
The meeting was opened to the public and no one wished to speak. 
 
The Board carried the matter to the September 22, 2004 meeting. 
 
MEMORIALIZATIONS 
 
BRAEMAR AT HIGH CREST, L.L.C.      
(FIELDSTONE ESTATES) 
Resolution No. 2004 - 17 
Amended Preliminary Subdivision 0410-1739A 
Final Subdivision #0410-1739D (Section III) 
Variance #0430-0649 
Block 13003; Lot 1 
Block 13002; Lot 1 (final subdivision only) 
Hearthstone Drive, R-2 Zone 
APPROVED: Amended preliminary subdivision with variance relief and final subdivision for 

the creation of 8 single-family building lots. 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by Leslie Tallaksen, to memorialize the 

resolution. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, 

Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, Clinton Smith, 
Michael Tfank. 

 No - None 
 
ALICE ZAMPELLA 
Resolution No. 2004 - 18       
Final Subdivision #0410-1939B     
Block 14601; Lots 5 and 6 
Union Valley Road; R-3 Zone 
APPROVED: Final subdivision to create 4 residential building lots. 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by Kurt Wagner, to memorialize the resolution. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, 

Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, Clinton Smith, 
Michael Tfank. 

 No - None 
 
OMNIPOINT COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
Resolution No. 2004 - 19     
Preliminary & Final Site Plan #0420-0169AB   
Block 9901; Lot 39 
17 Wooley Road; R-4 Zone 
APPROVED: Preliminary and final site plan to collocate 12 antennas at the 105-foot level on 

an existing, 125-foot-high monopole. 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by Douglas Ott, to memorialize the resolution. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 11 of 13 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, 

Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, Clinton Smith, 
Michael Tfank. 

 No - None 
 
LAKELAND BANK 
Resolution No. 2004 - 20        
Minor Site Plan #0320-0159      
Variance #0330-0643 
Block 14605; Lot 3 
One Lakeland Plaza; HC Zone 
APPROVED: Minor site plan with variance relief for the construction of a one-story accessory 

structure to be used as an ATM building. 
 
MOTION made by Michael Siesta, seconded by Leslie Tallaksen, to memorialize the 

resolution. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, Douglas Ott, 

Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, Clinton Smith, 
Michael Tfank. 

 No - None 
 
ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION – None. 
 
ORDINANCES REFERRED FROM COUNCIL – None. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
NJDEP requirements for existing septic systems:     In response to the Board’s request a 
memo was received from the Health Officer regarding this matter.  Members noted that the 
response was inadequate and that a written policy had not been supplied.  They requested 
that the Health Officer attend the next meeting of the Board to answer the Board’s questions 
and to explain the Department’s policy.  
 
Codification:    William Drew advised that a proposal had been forwarded to the 
Administrator.  Mr. Elcavage requested that at least two additional bids be obtained.   
 
PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT - None 
 
PLANNING BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Gonzalez advised the Board on the status of the O’Shea litigation regarding minutes.  The 
judge determined that minutes of the Board should be available for the public 48 hours prior 
to the next meeting of the Board.  The Chairman noted that a disc of the recording of all 
meetings is available the day after the meeting.   
 
At the request of the Board the Board Attorney submitted an opinion regarding public 
participation at work meetings.  After discussion the Board decided to set aside a half-hour 
before each work meeting for public input. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - Joseph Elcavage, Douglas Ott, Michael Siesta, Leslie Tallaksen, 

Kurt Wagner, Matthew DeFede, Michael Tfank. 
 No - James O’Bryant, Edward Orthouse, 
 
MINUTES 
 
MOTION made by Joseph Elcavage, seconded by Leslie Tallaksen, to approve the minutes of 
the June 3, 2004 work meeting and the June 23, 2004 regular meeting.  On voice vote all 
were in favor. 
 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 12 of 13 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The following correspondence was received and filed: 
 
County Planning Board reports to the Planning Board regarding the following applications: 
 

Clinton Ridge Estates (CFA Custom Homes), Preliminary Plat, Block 17302; Lot 2, 
Clinton Road.  Approval withheld pending receipt of additional information. 
 
Bald Eagle Commons, Site Plan, Block 5308, Lot 3, Cahill Cross Road.  Approval 
withheld pending receipt of additional information. 
 
Mark Lindsay Plumbing & Heating, Site Plan, Block 6404; Lot 1.02, Greenwood Lake 
Turnpike.  Approval withheld pending receipt of additional information. 
 

Notice received July 7, 2004 advising that the Morris County Planning Board will be holding 
a Public Outreach Meeting for Cross Acceptance on Thursday, July 15, 2004. 
 
Letter dated June 24, 2004 from LAN Associates advising that Shiloh Bible Camp is applying 
for a Letter of Interpretation for property located at 753 Burnt Meadow Road, Block 6002; 
Lot 47. 
 
Letter dated July 9, 2004 from EcolSciences, Inc. advising that Trammell Crow Residential is 
applying for an Extension of a Letter of Interpretation for property located on Union Valley 
and Dockerty Hollow Roads, Block 8002; Lot 4 (Valley Ridge Gardens). 
 
Copy of letter dated July 8, 2004 from Kevin Byrnes, Acting Administrator, to Jefferson 
Township Chief of Police regarding the closing of the Davenport/Cross Road Bridge. 
 
Notice dated June 4, 2004 advising that Robert Mazzoretti is applying for a Letter of 
Interpretation for property located on Club House Trail, Block 504; Lot 1. 
 
Letter dated June 23, 2004 from the DEP advising that authorization has been granted Scott 
Richardson for a General Permit No. 25 and Waiver of Transition Area for Access for property 
located at 22 Tintle Avenue, Block 3704; Lot 18.01. 
 
Letter dated June 28, 2004 from the DEP advising that authorization has been granted 
Edmund Heimers for a General Permit No. 25 and Waiver of Transition Area for Access for 
property located at 19 Keel Road, Block 7508; Lot 26. 
 
ADDENDUM TO AGENDA 
 
MEMORIALIZATIONS 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2004 – 16 
 
MOTION made by Michael Tfank, seconded by Leslie Tallaksen to memorialize the resolution. 
 
On roll call vote: Yes - James O’Bryant, Douglas Ott, Leslie Tallaksen, Kurt Wagner, 

Clinton Smith, Michael Tfank. 
 No - None 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The following correspondence was received and filed: 
 
County Planning Board reports to the Planning Board regarding the following applications: 
 

Inserra/West Milford LLC, Minor Subdivision, Block 6303; Lots 13 and 15, 45 Marshal 
Hill Road.  Approval withheld pending receipt of additional information. 

 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 28, 2004  
Regular Meeting 
Page 13 of 13 
 
Letter dated July 20, 2004 from EcolSciences, Inc. advising that Westview, Inc. is applying 
for a Letter of Interpretation: Line Verification for property located on Morsetown Road, 
Block 5002; Lot 5. 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned by unanimous consent at 11:20 p.m. 
 
         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
         Grace R. Davis 
         Secretary 
 
 
PB\Minutes\2004\07-28-04Reg 
 

 


	Regular Meeting
	Public Portion
	Zone Change #0450-0176
	
	
	
	
	
	Bulk Variance #0430-0665
	Block 8201; Lot 2




	The applicant, Eugene Prais, 114 Dockerty Hollow Road, West Milford, advised the Board that he was prepared to submit a check for the escrow monies due.  He further advised that the taxes on the property were paid in full.  Mr. Prais outlined the history
	Douglas McKittrick, PE, PP, McKittrick Engineerin
	Memorializations


	Amended Preliminary Subdivision 0410-1739A
	Variance #0430-0649
	
	
	
	
	
	Alice Zampella
	Resolution No. 2004 - 18






	Resolution No. 2004 - 20
	
	Mr. Gonzalez advised the Board on the status of t
	Addendum to Agenda
	Memorializations


	Resolution No. 2004 – 16

